1 2 3 4 5	Town of Chester Board of Selectmen's Meeting Thursday, April 6, 2023 Municipal Complex Approved Minutes
6 7	I. Preliminaries
8	
9	Call the Meeting to Order
10	Roll Call
11	Pledge of Allegiance
12	Chairman's Additions or Deletions
13	Public Comment (10 minutes)
14	Stowe Road: Dubay Group
15	Impact Fees: Rob Brown
16	Building Inspector Mutual Aid Contract with Auburn
17	Website Updates
18	Consent Agenda
19	Chairman's Announcements
20	Roundtable
21 22	TA Report Action Items
22	Potential Non-Public Sessions
23	Adjournment
25	Aujournment
26	1.1 Call to Order
27	
28	Chairman Myette called the meeting of the Chester Board of Selectmen to order at 6:00pm.
29	
30	1.2 Roll Call
31	
32	Selectmen Present:
33	
34	Chuck Myette
35	Steve Couture
36	Dana Theokas
37	Dick Trask
38	
39	Selectmen Absent:
40	Stephen Landau
41	Debre Dede Town Administrator
42	Debra Doda, Town Administrator
43 44	Members of the Public Present at various times:
44 45	
43 46	Aaron Berube, Police Chief
40 47	Rob Brown
48	Myrick Bunker, Building Inspector
49	Ephraim Dobbins
50	Doug MacGuire, Dubay Group

51	Nancy Myette		
52	Corinna Reishus, Recreation Director		
53	Jacob Rutledge		
54	Kevin Scott		
55			
56	and other persons unknown to the Recording Secretary.		
57			
58	1.3 Pledge of Allegiance		
59			
60	Chairman Myette led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.		
61			
62	1.4 Chairman's Additions or Deletions		
63	None		
64			
65	1.5 Public Comment		
66			
67	Chairman Myette opened the meeting to public comment at 6:01pm.		
68	chairman Myette opened the meeting to public comment at 0.01pm.		
69	As no Members of the Public wished to be heard, Public Comment was closed at 6:02pm.		
70	his no members of the rubble wished to be heard, rubble comment was closed at 0.02pm.		
71	Chairman Myette introduced Ms. Theokas and Mr. Trask as the newly elected officials on the Board.		
72	Chairman Myette Introduced MS. Theoras and Mr. Trask as the newly elected officials of the Doard.		
73	II. Appointments		
73 74	n. Appointments		
74 75	2.1 Stowe Road: Dubay Group		
76			
76 77	Mr. MacGuire is representing the Garabedians. The Dubay Group has been working with the		
78 79	Planning Board for a little over six months.		
79 80	Chairman Myette has recused himself as an abutter to the property. Vice Chairman Couture will		
80 81	lead the discussion.		
82			
	My MacCuire is caling normization from the Doord to allow the use of Stows Dood for econor to the		
83	Mr. MacGuire is asking permission from the Board to allow the use of Stowe Road for access to the		
84 85	Garabedian property. Selectwoman Theokas mentioned past concerns with the upgrades to the		
85	road. Mr. MacGuire explained gravel was added to Stowe Road and the size of the rock was		
86	concerning. This issue has been rectified. Mr. MacGuire added, if possible, the Garabedians would		
87	like to pave a small portion of Stowe Road where it meets Fremont Road. Less damage to Fremont		
88	Road would be incurred with an apron.		
89			
90	Vice Chairman Couture asked for the requests to be put in writing and continue the discussion to a		
91	future meeting.		
92			
93	Mr. Scott mentioned that he has spoken at the Planning Board meetings and felt that Stowe Road, a		
94	Class VI Road, should not be opened. Selectwoman Theokas reiterated the request is to use Stowe		
95	Road to gain access to their property not open the entire length of Stowe Road. Mr. Scott		
96	emphasized that Stowe Road is not a thru way for vehicles.		
97			
98	It was requested the Dubay Group contact Mr. Piper, Supervisor of Roads, (not present) and Mr.		
99	Bunker, Building Inspector, to clarify exactly what the Board would be approving.		
100			

101 102	Chairman Myette suggested a presentation might also help with understanding.		
103 104	2.2 Impact Fees: Rob Brown		
105 106 107 108	Mr. Brown, 501 Fremont Road, explained the history with the ADU above the garage. Because the project sat for too long, he had to meet with the ZBA and get a variance and pay impact fees as if it were new. Mr. Brown did not agree with the fees but paid them so he could get the permit.		
109 110 111 112 113	Chairman Myette inquired how the property was taxed during the timeframe when it was a shell, and why Mr. Brown is coming now and not when he had to pay. Mr. Brown stated he was busy. Chairman Myette mentioned a definition of if it is new or not and the appeal time will need to be looked at further. All questions will be funneled to Town Administrator Doda, and she will contact Town Counsel.		
114 115 116 117 118 119	Building Inspector Bunker pointed out the project took longer than expected and was taken down to the deck. Once the 2 <sup>nd</sup> floor was removed and sat for over a year, the current zoning applies. Selectman Trask asked when the ADU requirements changed. Building Inspector Bunker stated the state changed the requirements in either 2017 or 2018.		
120	The Board will look into this further before making a decision.		
121 122 123	III. New Business		
124 125	3.1.1 Building Inspector Mutual Aid Contract with Auburn		
126 127 128	Town Administrator Doda mentioned the only change made was adding wording clarifying that the agreement will expire two years from execution.		
129 130 131 132	Chairman Myette motioned to approve signing the Building Inspector Mutual Aid Contract with Auburn. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau – absent. With four in favor, the motion passed with Landau absent.		
133 134 125	3.2 Website Updates		
135 136 137 138 139 140	Selectman Trask congratulated Town Administrator Doda on all she has accomplished with the Town website. He would like to change the format on the school page to match the rest of the website and add links; an example of one link to add would be the Department of Education. Vice Chairman Couture suggested asking the School Board what they would want for links.		
141	Town Administrator Doda will ask what the school might want on the page.		
142 143 144	IV. Consent Agenda		
145 146	4.1 Granite State Communications Contract		
140 147 148 149 150	Town Administrator Doda is working on revisions and will have a contract for the Board at an upcoming meeting.		

151 152	V. Selectmen's Business				
153 154	4.4 Action Items (moved from later in	the meeting)			
155 156 157 158		own Clerk/ Tax Collector and Deputy Treasurer are in the elected and reelected officials, the Deputies needed to be			
159 160 161 162 163	Selectman Trask motioned to reappoint Barbara Cannon as Deputy Town Clerk/ Tax Collector. Vice Chairman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau – absent. With four in favor, the motion passed with Landau absent.				
164 165 166 167	Selectman Trask motioned to reappoint Christine Cue as Deputy Treasurer. Vice Chairman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau – absent. With four in favor, the motion passed with Landau absent.				
168 169 170	Town Administrator Doda mentione signed last year.	ed the appointment paperwork for Brian Sullivan was never			
171 172 173 174 175	Selectwoman Theokas motioned to reappoint Brian Sullivan to the Planning Board as a regular member with a term to expire of May 31 <sup>st</sup> , 2025. Vice Chairman Couture seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau – absent. With four in favor, the motion passed with Landau absent.				
176 177	Chairman Myette asked for a change to the document before the Board will sign.				
178 179	4.1 Chairman's Announcements				
180 181	Chairman Myette announced the following meetings and upcoming events:				
182 183	Friday April 7, 2023	Conservation Commission Meeting at 6:00pm			
184 185	Monday April 10, 2023	Budget Committee Meeting at 7:00pm			
186 187	Tuesday April 11, 2023	Conservation Commission Meeting at 7:00pm			
188 189	Wednesday April 12, 2023	Planning Board Meeting at 7:00pm			
190 191	Thursday April 13, 2023	Board of Selectmen Meeting at 6:00pm			
192 193 194 195	Saturday April 15, 2023	Rabies Clinic from 9am to 12pm in the Town Hall Parking Lot. Must sign up by calling Ark Animal Homecare. More details on ChesterNH.org			
196 197	4.2 Roundtable				
197 198 199	Chairman Myette explained the purp	ose of round table.			

- 200 Selectwoman Theokas appreciates being newly elected to the Board of Selectmen and is honored to 201 work with everyone.
- 202

203 Selectwoman Theokas is looking forward to moving forward with maintenance on the fields with the Recreation Department. Vice Chairman Couture mentioned the School Board, leagues and 204 Recreation Director Reishus worked together last year and figured out who is responsible for 205 206 things at the fields. Vice Chairman Couture suggested Recreation Director Reishus reshare the meeting notes and discussion about what everyone's responsibility is for the fields. 207

208

209 Recreation Director Reishus advised the fields are not ready and are still soaked according to

- Groundskeeper Dalrymple. The Town is responsible for the mowing and other than that the fields 210 are provided as-is. Once the discrepancy with impact fees is resolved, Recreation Director Reishus 211 will be working on getting the fences fixed. At this point, Recreation Director Reishus has received 212 213 very few usage forms for the fields.
- 214

Selectwoman Theokas mentioned an issue with the mounds on the fields. Recreation Director 215

- 216 Reishus reiterated that the fields are as-is, and she has not been notified of any issues with the mounds. 217
- 218

219 Vice Chairman Couture inquired if there were responses for the solar committee or if the posting 220 was put up on the website. Town Administrator Doda reported it has not happened yet.

221

Vice Chairman Couture will be proposing to change the meeting schedule. The proposal will be to 222

- 223 have fewer meetings but be more efficient. Selectwoman Theokas asked if there was a policy to vote 224 to extend the meeting if it went too late. The meetings have no time limit.
- 225

226 Selectman Trask mentioned attending Exit 4A committee meetings and would like to attend again. 227 Chairman Myette stated Selectman Landau (not present) has been attending the meetings. He

mentioned the Department of Transportation (DOT) has a plan for the center of town but has not 228

229 presented it. Selectwoman Theokas pointed out the SAU would like to be involved too. Traffic is bad

and school has been delayed due to the traffic. Vice Chairman Couture inquired if a request in 230

writing for a status update on DOT's plan for the center of town has been submitted. Town 231

Administrator Doda mentioned Town Planner Hadik (not present) is working with Southern NH 232

- 233 Planning Commission on this.
- 234

235 Selectman Trask inquired how the Town Administrator is being utilized. In the past Selectmen

would take charge of an issue. This alleviates too many Selectmen calling on the same issue. 236

Chairman Myette advised at the next meeting liaisons would be discussed. The Town 237

- 238 Administrator's position is to funnel information to the Board of Selectmen. The Board still has
- ultimate responsibility for managing the Town and making decisions. Town Administrator Doda 239

has been given authority on some of the day-to-day items. This discussion will resume at the next 240 meeting.

- 241
- 242

243 Selectman Trask mentioned he would like to work on economic development and bringing

- additional businesses into town. Chairman Myette advised there is not a plan for economic 244
- development in town and it depends on what the business is if we want to encourage them to come 245

to town. Chairman Myette suggested a proposal be brought to the Board if Selectman Trask would 246

- like to form an economic development group or committee. 247
- 248

An economic development plan would be in conjunction with the Master Plan which is due for an update. Chairman Myette mentioned Town Planner Hadik has started to talk about getting the				
<ul><li>251 update done.</li><li>252</li></ul>				
253 Chairman Myette:				
254 Nothing to report				
255				
256 <i>4.3 Town Administrator's Report</i>				
257				
258 Vice Chairman Couture believes number 14 should be discussed with Maintenance Dir	rector			
Cavanaugh (not present) and Transfer Station Foreman Manfrates (not present) and a proposal				
should be submitted to the Board. Chairman Myette mentioned in the past the Transfer Station was				
opened at different times. Town Administrator Doda mentioned Transfer Station Forman Manfrates				
262 works 28 hours doing clean up, reset, and general maintenance and wondered if there	works 28 hours doing clean up, reset, and general maintenance and wondered if there was a			
	possibility of opening the gates to the public during some of those hours. Chairman Myette advised			
	it should be very clear how it would work so it is not being abused. He also mentioned the intent is			
265 not to have a full-time position at the Transfer Station.				
266				
267 4.4 Action Items (moved to earlier in meeting)				
268				
269 4.5 Non-Public Session(s)				
270				
271 Chairman Myette announced two additional non-public sessions.				
272 272 View Chairmann Courtains and to go into your multiple coopies many mutter 01 4-2				
	Vice Chairman Couture motioned to go into non-public session pursuant to 91-A:3(II) (a) public			
<ul> <li>employees and (c) reputation. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A roll call vol</li> <li>Myette – aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau – absent. With four 1</li> </ul>	employees and (c) reputation. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken			
<ul> <li>275 Myette - dye, Trask- dye, Theoras - dye, Coutare - dye, Landdu - dosent. With Jour 1</li> <li>276 motion passed with Landau absent.</li> </ul>	in juvor, the			
277 motion passed with Landau absent. 277				
The meeting was closed to the public at 7:24 PM.				
279				
280 Vice Chairman Couture motioned to come out of non-public session. Selectman Tra	ask seconded			
281 the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myette – aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Cout				
282 Landau – absent. With four in favor, the motion passed with Landau absent.				
283				
The meeting was reopened to the public at 7:48 PM.				
285				
286 Vice Chairman Couture motioned to seal the minutes of the first non-public session	n, on Public			
287 Employees. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myett	te – aye,			
288 Trask- aye, Theokas -aye, Couture -aye, Landau - absent. With four in favor, the n	motion			
289 passed with Landau absent.				
290				
291 Vice Chairman Couture motioned to seal the minutes of the second non-public sess				
292 Reputation. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myet	-			
	Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau – absent. With four in favor, the motion			
294 <i>passed with Landau absent.</i>				
295				
<ul> <li>Vice Chairman Couture motioned to seal the minutes of the third non-public sessio</li> <li>Reputation. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken Myett</li> </ul>				

- Trask- aye, Theokas -aye, Couture -aye, Landau absent. With four in favor, the motion
   passed with Landau absent.
- 300
- 301 VI. Adjournment
- 302
  303 Vice Chairman Couture moved to adjourn the meeting. Selectman Trask seconded the motion. A
- roll call vote was taken Myette aye, Trask– aye, Theokas –aye, Couture –aye, Landau absent.
   With four in favor, the motion passed with Landau absent.
- 306
- 307 The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 PM.
- 308
- 309 Respectfully submitted,
- 310
- 311 Janis A. Jalbert
- **312** Recording Secretary